
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

MARSHALL DIVISION 
 

ZENO HOLDINGS, LLC ) 
  ) 
 Plaintiff,  ) 
   ) Civil Action No. 2:16-cv-583 
v.   )  
   ) JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 
ZOHO CORPORATION  )  
   )  
 Defendant.  ) 
   )   

COMPLAINT 

For its Complaint, Plaintiff Zeno Holdings, LLC ("Zeno Holdings"), by and through the 

undersigned counsel, alleges as follows: 

THE PARTIES 

1. Zeno Holdings is a Texas limited liability company with a place of business 

located at 1400 Preston Road, Suite 400, Plano, Texas 75093.   

2. Defendant Zoho Corporation is a California company with, upon information and 

belief, a place of business located at 805 Las Cimas Pkwy, Suite 380, Austin, Texas 78746 

3. Upon information and belief, Defendant has registered with the Texas Secretary 

of State to conduct business in Texas. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

4. This action arises under the Patent Act, 35 U.S.C. § 1 et seq.   

5. Subject matter jurisdiction is proper in this Court under 28 U.S.C.  

§§ 1331 and 1338. 

6. Upon information and belief, Defendant conducts substantial business in this 

forum, directly or through intermediaries, including:  (i) at least a portion of the infringements 
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alleged herein; and (ii) regularly doing or soliciting business, engaging in other persistent courses 

of conduct and/or deriving substantial revenue from goods and services provided to individuals 

in this district. 

7. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to §§ 1391(b), (c) and 1400(b). 

THE PATENTS-IN-SUIT 

8. On August 25, 2015, U.S. Patent No. 9,118,773 (the "'773 patent"), entitled 

"Automated Prompting Techniques Implemented Via Mobile Devices and Systems," was duly 

and lawfully issued by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.  A true and correct copy of the 

'063 patent is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

9. On June 10, 2014, U.S. Patent No. 8,750,836 (the "'836 patent"), entitled 

"Automated Prompting Techniques Implemented Via Mobile Devices and Systems," was duly 

and lawfully issued by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.  A true and correct copy of the 

'836 patent is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

10. On April 9, 2013, U.S. Patent No. 8,417,233 (the "'233 patent"), entitled 

"Automated Notation Techniques Implemented Via Mobile Devices and/or Computer 

Networks," was duly and lawfully issued by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.  A true and 

correct copy of the '233 patent is attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

11. Zeno Holdings is the assignee and owner of the right, title and interest in and to 

the '773, '836 and '233 patents, including the right to assert all causes of action arising under said 

patents and the right to any remedies for infringement of them.  

COUNT I – INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 9,118,773 

12. Zeno Holdings repeats and realleges the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 11 as 

if fully set forth herein. 
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13. Without license or authorization and in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a), Defendant 

is liable for infringement of at least claim 1 of the '773 patent by making, using, importing, 

offering for sale, and/or selling systems and methods for operating a mobile communication 

device associated with a user, including, but not limited to, Zoho CRM Mobile Edition.  

14. More specifically and upon information and belief, Defendant's Zoho CRM 

Mobile Edition includes a method for operating a mobile communication device associated with 

a user.  

 

Zoho CRM Mobile Edition can be installed on the Android phones with OS 4.0 or a higher.  

Android systems require a 200 MHz processor to support a variety of platforms and 

configurations.  The Android processor of the mobile device is the processor that executes the 

instructions provided by Zoho CRM Mobile Edition. 

Case 2:16-cv-00583   Document 1   Filed 06/02/16   Page 3 of 25 PageID #:  3



 
 

4 

 

Zoho CRM Mobile Edition identifies a set of threshold criteria for causing a display, at the 

mobile communication device, of a user interface message prompting the user to initiate a 

procedure at the mobile communication device. 
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Zoho CRM Mobile Edition determines if an occurrence of an end of call (EOC) event has been 

detected at the mobile communication device. 

Case 2:16-cv-00583   Document 1   Filed 06/02/16   Page 5 of 25 PageID #:  5



 
 

6 

 

When the call is over, and if the threshold criteria is met (i.e., if the incoming contact's phone 

number is available in the database), a message is displayed on the interface of the mobile device 

prompting the user to initiate the call log ("first procedure")). 
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Then, the procedure is initiated at the mobile communication device in response to receiving an 

input from the user authorizing initiation of the procedure. 
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Initiating the procedure includes generating, using the input from the user, a portion of digital 

content and accessing information which includes details relating to the phone call. 
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Zoho CRM Mobile Edition's "Log a Call" functionality allows a user to create an electronic file 

comprising details of the call such as call duration, date, time, etc. and notes (described by the 

user).  The details are saved so that they are accessible to the user for future reference. 
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15. Zeno Holdings is entitled to recover from Defendant the damages sustained by 

Zeno Holdings as a result of Defendant's infringement of the '773 patent in an amount subject to 

proof at trial, which, by law, cannot be less than a reasonable royalty, together with interest and 

costs as fixed by this Court under 35 U.S.C. § 284. 

COUNT II – INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 8,750,836 

16. Zeno Holdings repeats and realleges the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 15 as 

if fully set forth herein. 

17. Without license or authorization and in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a), Defendant 

is liable for infringement of at least claim 1 of the '836 patent by making, using, importing, 

offering for sale, and/or methods systems and methods for operating a mobile communication 

device associated with a user, including, but not limited to, Zoho CRM Mobile Edition.  
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18. More specifically and upon information and belief, Defendant's Zoho CRM 

Mobile Edition includes a method for operating a mobile communication device associated with 

a first user.  

 

Zoho CRM Mobile Edition can be installed on the Android phones with OS 4.0 or a higher.  

Android systems require a 200 MHz processor to support a variety of platforms and 

configurations.  The Android processor of the mobile device is the processor that executes the 

instructions provided by Zoho CRM Mobile Edition. 
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Zoho CRM Mobile Edition enables the first user of the mobile device to identify a first set of 

threshold criteria for enabling automatic display, at the mobile communication device, of a first 

user interface message prompting the first user to initiate a first procedure at the mobile 

communication device. 
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Zoho CRM Mobile Edition detects  first event at the mobile communication device relating to an 

initiation of a first phone call at the mobile communication device and determines if an 

occurrence of a first end of call (EOC) event has been detected at the mobile communication 

device, the first EOC event relating to a termination of the first phone call. 
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When the call is over, and if the threshold criteria is met (i.e., if the Call Logging feature is 

enabled and the incoming call's phone number is available in the database), a message is 

displayed on the interface of the mobile device prompting the user to initiate the call log ("first 

procedure). 
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The first procedure at the mobile communication device is initiated in response to receiving input 

from the first user authorizing initiation of the first procedure. 

Case 2:16-cv-00583   Document 1   Filed 06/02/16   Page 15 of 25 PageID #:  15



 
 

16 

 

Initiating the first procedure includes  generating, using input from the first user, a first portion of 

digital content, and accessing information which includes details relating to the first phone call. 
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Initiating the first procedure also includes creating a first electronic data file which associates the 

first portion of digital content with at least a portion of the details relating to the first phone call, 

and (iv) saving the first electronic data file at a first storage device such that the first electronic 

data file is accessible to the first user for future reference. 
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19. Zeno Holdings is entitled to recover from Defendant the damages sustained by 

Zeno Holdings as a result of Defendant's infringement of the '836 patent in an amount subject to 

proof at trial, which, by law, cannot be less than a reasonable royalty, together with interest and 

costs as fixed by this Court under 35 U.S.C. § 284. 

COUNT III – INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 8,417,233 

20. Zeno Holdings repeats and realleges the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 19 as 

if fully set forth herein. 

21. Without license or authorization and in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a), Defendant 

is liable for infringement of at least claims 1 and 2 of the '233 patent by making, using, 

importing, offering for sale, and/or methods systems and methods for operating a mobile 
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communication device associated with a user, including, but not limited to, Zoho CRM Mobile 

Edition.  

22. More specifically and upon information and belief, Defendant's Zoho CRM 

Mobile Edition includes a method for operating a mobile communication device associated with 

a first user.  

 

Zoho CRM Mobile Edition can be installed on Android phones.  See 

https://www.zoho.com/crm/help/mobile/install-app-for-android.html (last accessed June 2, 

2016).  Zoho CRM Mobile Edition detects, at the mobile communication device, an occurrence 

of a first communication event relating to a first communication activity at the mobile 

communication device. 
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Zoho CRM Mobile Edition determines whether the Call Logging feature is enabled by the user. 

It also checks whether the incoming call's phone number is available in the Zoho CRM database 

("threshold criteria"). 
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If the threshold criteria is met (i.e., if the Call Logging feature is enabled and the incoming call's 

phone number is available in the database), a message is displayed on the interface of the mobile 

device prompting the user to initiate the call log ("recommended feature"). 
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Zoho CRM Mobile Edition waits, at the mobile communication device, a first predetermined 

time interval to receive input from the user authorizing initiation of the first recommended 

procedure at the mobile communication device and automatically initiates the first recommended 

procedure at the mobile communication device in response to receiving input from the user 

authorizing initiation of the first recommended procedure. 

 

Zoho CRM Mobile Edition generates, in response to initiating the first recommended procedure, 

a first portion of digital content, accesses information which includes details relating to the 

detected first communication event, and creates a first electronic data file which associates the 

first portion of digital content with at least a portion of the details relating to the detected first 

communication event.   
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Zoho CRM Mobile Edition's Log a Call functionality allows a user to create an electronic file 

comprising the details of the call such as call duration, date, time, etc. and notes described by the 

user.  The details are saved so that they are accessible to the user for future reference. 
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23. Zeno Holdings is entitled to recover from Defendant the damages sustained by 

Zeno Holdings as a result of Defendant's infringement of the '233 patent in an amount subject to 

proof at trial, which, by law, cannot be less than a reasonable royalty, together with interest and 

costs as fixed by this Court under 35 U.S.C. § 284. 

JURY DEMAND 

Zeno Holdings hereby demands a trial by jury on all issues so triable. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Zeno Holdings requests that this Court enter judgment against Defendant 

as follows: 

A. An adjudication that Defendant has infringed the '773, '836 and '233 patents; 
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B. An award of damages to be paid by Defendant adequate to compensate Zeno 

Holdings for Defendant's past infringement of the '773, '836 and '233 patents and any continuing 

or future infringement through the date such judgment is entered, including interest, costs, 

expenses and an accounting of all infringing acts including, but not limited to, those acts not 

presented at trial; 

C. A declaration that this case is exceptional under 35 U.S.C. § 285, and an award of 

Zeno Holdings' reasonable attorneys' fees; and 

D. An award to Zeno Holdings of such further relief at law or in equity as the Court 

deems just and proper.    

 

Dated:  June 2, 2016 /s/ Richard C. Weinblatt   
Stamatios Stamoulis DE SB #4606 
Richard C. Weinblatt DE SB #5080 – Lead Counsel 
Stamoulis & Weinblatt LLC 
Two Fox Point Centre 
6 Denny Road, Suite 307 
Wilmington, DE 19809  
Telephone:  (302) 999-1540 
Facsimile:  (302) 762-1688 
stamoulis@swdelaw.com 
weinblatt@swdelaw.com 

 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
Zeno Holdings, LLC 
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